

# Introduction

Collaborative Planning

Version 4 December 2019

# IT Training Information Services servicedesk@port.ac.uk

# Contents

| Data Protection<br>Introduction                       | 1<br>2 |
|---|--------|
| What is Collaborative Planning?                       | 2      |
| General Security                                      | 2      |
| Security  | 2      |
| Accounts  | 2      |
| Contacts and Information                              | 2      |
| CP Navigation   | З      |
| Logging on to CP                                      | 3      |
| Location  | 3      |
| User name and password                                | 3      |
| Toolbar Functions                                     | 3      |
| Navigation Panel                                      | 4      |
| Preferences   | 4      |
| Function Panel  | 4      |
| Actions Tab   | 5      |
| Data Entry Option                                     | 5      |
| Responsibility Area                                   | 5      |
| Budget Transfer Authorisation                         | 5      |
| Reports Tab   | 5      |
| Overview of Forecasting and Monitoring Process        | 6      |
| Reasons why we must budget effectively and accurately | 6      |
| Budget monitoring and amending forecasts              | 6      |
| Forecasting amendments & monitoring - non salaries    | 7      |
| Overview  | 7      |
| Profile   | 7      |
| Form Profiles   | 7      |
| Process to view forms                                 | 7      |
| Form Output   | 8      |
| Form - UP_BUDFOR_ACTUALS_CC                           | 8      |
| Form Functionality                                    | 9      |
| Navigation Trail/Breadcrumb                           | 9      |
| Process to change the criteria:                       | 9      |
| Font size and Profile                                 | 9      |
| Expanding and Collapsing the Hierarchy                | 9      |

| View Menu                                       | 9  |
|---|----|
| Display preferences                             | 9  |
| Show Horizontal Border Lines                    | 9  |
| Show Summary Lines as Bold                      | 9  |
| Drill Down                                      | 10 |
| Update the Forecast                             | 10 |
| Comments  | 10 |
| Process to add a comment                        | 11 |
| Process to add an attachment                    | 11 |
| Cell Notes                                      | 11 |
| Cell Attachment                                 | 11 |
| Salary Calculator                               | 11 |
| Open the Salary Calculator                      | 12 |
| Employee Data tab                               | 12 |
| New Employees / Overrides on Existing Employees | 12 |
| Enter a leave date                              | 12 |
| Forecast Tab                                    | 13 |
| Other Functionality                             | 14 |
| Add a new account element                       | 14 |
| Download the form as an Excel file              | 14 |
| Reporting                                       | 15 |
| Reports Tab                                     | 15 |
| Process to run a report                         | 15 |
| Report Output                                   | 15 |
| Reporting Deadlines                             | 17 |
| Financial Year Deadlines                        | 17 |

# Data Protection

The Collaborative Planning (CP) system holds personal data about individual members of staff in relation to salaries. This data should be processed in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation 2018, and should not be disclosed to third parties except in certain circumstances, an example of which is given below.

The CP system is password protected for security reasons and for that reason, you must not share your password with anyone else. Only certain members of staff have the ability to change data and this access control should not be altered without good reason, following documented procedures. The procedures are documented in the finance manuals. You should not leave your computer logged onto the CP system for any length of time and you should always remember to lock your computer whilst you are away from your desk.

There will be very few situations where data needs to be provided to a third party. In most instances, the member of staff whose data is to be shared should be asked for their consent before the proposed disclosure is completed. There are situations where we may be under obligation to provide the data eg if an auditor requests it or if providing the data may be in the public interest. It would be appropriate still to inform the member(s) of staff whose data is to be disclosure and is to be disclosure. Any disclosure should be recorded in case it is queried later.

It should be noted that it is an offence under the General Data Protection Regulation 2018 to knowingly or recklessly disclose personal data. Individuals may be personally liable for such an offence. If you are unsure whether to disclose any data, check first with your manager or the University's Data Protection Officer, Samantha Hill.

If you have any queries about the Data Protection Act and how it affects your work, please feel free to contact the Samantha Hill on x 3642 or look at the University web pages on <u>data</u> <u>protection</u>.

May 2018

# Introduction

# What is Collaborative Planning?

Collaborative Planning is the budget planning software used by the University to provide flexible, accurate budget setting and budget monitoring.

It will enable the live updating of forecasts, the ability to attach information to a forecast and standardised reporting.

# **General Security**

#### Security

The Collaborative Planning system has extensive security to provide an audit trail of activity, which can be monitored. It is important that the system, and the data held on it, are used responsibly and in accordance with the procedures determined by Finance and under no circumstances should a user's account be shared.

#### Accounts

Access to the system will be enabled by Finance when the appropriate training has been successfully completed. Each account will be set up with access to the appropriate menus, screens and functions.

# **Contacts and Information**

The <u>IT Training webpages</u> provide a wide variety of information relating to the University's Corporate systems.

This information includes:

IT Training contacts

Appropriate Finance, Registry & Human Resource contacts

Course content and availability information Resources, e.g. the latest versions of each manual

# **CP** Navigation

# Logging on to CP

Based on a standard University build PC, after adding Collaborative Planning from 'Apps Anywhere.'

(Mac Users should contact the Finance Systems team for advice by emailing <u>finance.system@port.ac.uk</u>)

#### Location

- Start button
- All Programs
- Corporate Systems
- Finance
- Collaborative Planning

#### User name and password

CP live will be single sign on, and will automatically login in with your standard University network account, with no need to re-enter your password.

| Collaborative Planning R10 LIVE   |  |              |              |                                    |                            | Home      | Main M        | lenu 🔻     | Message | es 🞗 Gabrielle Collins 🔹   🕐  |
|---|--|--------------|--------------|------------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------|---------------|------------|---------|---|
| Model : University of Portsmouth Revenue V Working Set : Full cube data | -  |              |              |                                    |                            | • •       | lot Started   | 🔺 Preparin | g 🔻 Sub | mitted 🕨 Agreed ◀ Not Plannable 🔳 Disable   |
| Budget Cycle: UP_BUDSET_FY19 ▼ 2 2                                      | Cli Actio     Data Entr     Budget C     Profile : | y Options    | ashBoard     | E Budget Ir<br>nancial Year<br>Use | 19-20<br>e new Tab :<br>wn | A Respo   | Insibility Ov | vners      | • •     | Recent Messages<br>Message Of The Day :<br>Live System<br>Richard Simpson : 13 Oct 2017 13:40:14<br>Management Accounts Monthly Process<br>Richard Simpson : 27 Apr 2017 11:30:31 |
|   | - Responsil  | ation Serv   | ices A Prepa | aring                              | Amend                      | Not       |               |            | 8       | Java update message Andrew Redmond : 10 Nov 2016 10:30:35 CP roll forward in November Andrew Redmond : 3 Oct 2016 12:35:03  |
|   | Level  | Started      | Preparing    | Submitted                          | - Agreed                   | Plannable | Disabled      | Luc        |         | CP available  |
|   | 3<br>All Levels                                    |              | 9<br>10      |                                    |                            |           |               |            |         |   |
|   | Budget Tr  | ansfer Aut   | horisation   | 3 C (                              | 6                          |           |               |            | ×       |   |
|   | Request  | d Refe       | erence f     | leason                             | Owner                      | Statu     | us :          | Submitted  |         |   |
|   | No data e  | xists for yo | ur current s | election                           |                            |           |               |            |         |   |

Figure 1 - Home Screen

The first page displayed on logging into CP is the 'Home' page, or 'Workbench.' This gives a user access to their appropriate budgets.

#### **Toolbar Functions**



- The Home button refreshes the home page
- The Main Menu is NOT IN USE
- The Messages button opens a new window and displays system messages eg CP available
- The Logout 🕒 button

## Navigation Panel

At the top of the left hand, navigation panel a user can select the appropriate budget cycle using the drop down list. Below that, the panel displays the budget elements and cost centres relevant to the user.

To the right of the budget cycle drop down is a preferences icon. It is recommended that users change preferences to show a full tree structure before continuing.

#### Preferences

- Select the preferences icon and a selection window will open
- Select the dropdown list and choose 'Full Tree'
- Select OK to return to the Home Page

Click + and – to expand or collapse the hierarchies. Highlighting an element or cost centre in the left hand side will allow reports and forms to be generated for that area using functions available in the right hand side of the navigation.

## **Function Panel**

The function panel, on the right hand side, displays information over eight tabbed panels. Currently, functionality is not available for all of these. Two tabs are being used. The **Action Tab** and the **Reports Tab**. Use the right hand facing arrow to move through the tabs to the reports Tab.

| ET Actio                | ns 📀 Da                      | ashBoard                                   | E Budget Ir    | nstructions | & Respo            | nsibility Ow | mers [   |
|-------------------------|------------------------------|--|----------------|-------------|--------------------|--------------|----------|
| Data Entry              | Options                      | 0  |                |             |                    |              |          |
| Budget C                | ycle : Budg                  | et Setting Fin                             | ancial Year    | 19-20       |                    |              |          |
| Profile :               |                              |  | 👻 Use          | e new Tab : |                    |              |          |
| _                       |                              |  | 🖹 Top Do       | wn 🗟 E      | dit Profile        | 🔳 View       | 🔋 Review |
| Responsit<br>47030 - Ol | pility Area S<br>25 - Networ | <mark>itatus []]</mark> –<br>rk ▲ Preparin | ng             |             |                    |              | Submit   |
| Level                   | Not<br>Started               | ▲<br>Preparing                             | ▼<br>Submitted | Agreed      | ◀ Not<br>Plannable | Disabled     | Late     |
|                         |                              |  |                |             |                    |              |          |

Figure 3 - Function Panel

# **Actions Tab**

# Data Entry Option

| Field         | Description  |
|---------------|--|
| Drop down box | Select a specific form using the drop down menu (optional)   |
| Use new Tab   | Tick to view the form in a new window, where a user wants to view more than one element/cost centre via multiple tabs (optional) |
| Top Down      | Not in use   |
| Edit Profile  | Opens the Maintain Profiles window. A form can be selected from here (optional)  |
| View          | Not in use   |
| Review        | Launches the form for data entry/view  |

#### **Responsibility Area**

| Field         | Description   |
|---------------|---|
| Current State | Shows the current budget status with a corresponding coloured square. The colour code is shown underneath e.g. blue = preparing |
|               | This functionality will be developed once CP is live.   |

#### **Budget Transfer Authorisation**

Not in use.

# **Reports Tab**

Provides access to available reports.

| 4                   | Owners   | Budget Act  | tivity                   | 😵 Workflow Activity                        | 🔲 Reports    | ← Budget Limits | • | - |
|---------------------|----------|-------------|--------------------------|--|--------------|-----------------|---|---|
| Ide                 | entifier |             | Desc                     | ription                                    | -            | Туре            |   |   |
| FO                  | R_PROF_N | 1TH_MGT_ACS | Mon <sup>.</sup><br>Elem | thly Management Accou<br>ent to report on) | unts (Select | Mapped Excel    |   | ^ |
| FOR_PROF_DSAA_ACTS  |          |             | DSAA                     | A Staff Development Ex                     | Mapped Excel |                 |   |   |
| FOR_UP_RSCH_YE_ACS  |          |             | Rese                     | arch Year End Accounts                     | Mapped Excel |                 |   |   |
| FO                  | R_FAC_HU | M_MGT_ACS   | Hum                      | anities Management Ad                      | counts       | Mapped Excel    |   |   |
| FOR_FAC_BAL_MGT_ACS |          | BAL         | Management Accounts      | Mapped Excel                               |              |                 |   |   |
| FOR_FAC_SAH_MGT_ACS |          |             | Scier<br>Acco            | nce and Health Manage<br>unts              | Mapped Excel |                 |   |   |
| FO                  |          | DS ACT VTD  | Drint                    | ing department Actuals                     | Vear to Date | Manned Evcel    |   |   |

#### Figure 4 - Reports Tab

# Overview of Forecasting and Monitoring Process

# Reasons why we must budget effectively and accurately

Good forecasting and monitoring is essential for the University to ensure it is financially under control, and able to achieve its objectives and long term strategy.

Our strategy includes major investments to make our facilities and degrees attractive and high quality, enabling the University to find new markets and customers and remain competitive. Our financial forecasts need to be as up to date and accurate as possible, as borrowing from banks and external investors will need to be supported with robust management accounting reports.

Accurate forecasting also allows the University to be more financially flexible and respond quickly to opportunities for investment, or threats to its strategy. As potential savings in one budget area could be utilised for investment in another.

# Budget monitoring and amending forecasts

The University budget is set annually from the 1st August; it is then monitored on a monthly basis. Budgets are set at nominal level, for a cost centre or element. Where this isn't possible the category budget nominal should be used.

Recognise variances early in the cycle rather than wait. Be realistic about start dates for new staff and work closely with members of Finance to recognise and monitor slippage of expenditure across financial years.

Think about the movement of budget between categories of non-staff, eg where there might be an over spend, think about where there could be potential savings. But, never use savings on nonstaff budget to fund staff budgets.

Bear in mind materiality. One change of £50 - £100 on a budget would not be worth making on any size budget we have in the University. However, a change of £2,500 on a budget of £10,000 may be significant enough to reforecast.

CP is designed to be very easy to amend forecasts. Although it looks like a spreadsheet, CP does not hold on to formulas in cells. For non-staff expenditure and income, enter the new total forecast for the year, when you update a forecast, not just the additional amount or the reduction.

For Establishment Salary nominal codes, the forecast is taken care of with the inbuilt Salary Calculator driven by data from iTrent.

Users can start changing forecasts as soon as the previous reporting period is closed, and CP rolls forward.

Anyone that the budget holder requires to have responsibility for a budget may be allowed to change forecasts. This will depend on the set up of the department. Initially, staff with finance responsibility in an area may sit with the person with budget responsibility to change forecasts.

# Forecasting amendments & monitoring - non salaries

## Overview

Forms are used to view the data against budgets, monitor budgets and update the forecast. There are various forms.

The profile determines the layout of the form, the data that can be viewed, and what areas can be amended.

# Profile

#### **Form Profiles**

| Profile              | Description  |
|----------------------|--|
| UP_BUDFOR_ACTUALS    | This form is used to view actual income and expenditure by nominal/category/group.   |
|                      | Monthly figures are shown.   |
| UP_BUDFOR_ACTUALS_CC | This form is used to view actual income and expenditure by element/cost centre. Monthly figures are shown.                                   |
| UP_BUDFOR_INPUT      | This form is used to:  |
|                      | view budgeted, actual and committed<br>income/expenditure enter the latest forecast show the<br>budget and forecast variance by nominal code |
| UP_BUDFOR_INPUT_CC   | This form is used to:  |
|                      | view budgeted, actual and committed expenditure enter<br>the latest forecast show the budget and forecast<br>variance by element/cost centre |
| UP_BUDFOR_YEAR_END   | This form is used to:  |
|                      | compare the provisional yearend figures to the budget and last<br>forecast (June) show the budget and forecast variance by<br>nominal code   |
| UP_BUDSET_ROUND1     | This form is used to :   |
| (also round2, 3)     | prepare the budget for the next year each round in the process has its own form  |

#### Process to view forms

- Leave the budget cycle as the default
- Select a Cost Centre or Cost Element. Click the + or to open and close the hierarchies
- Click on the Action Tab

- Click Edit Profile and select a form from the maintain profile window
- Click OK and the selected form will be returned for the Element/Cost Centre selected

## Form Output

Budget monitoring data will be returned on the forms. The format of the data returned will depend on the form selected.

| Column Heading                   | Description  |
|----------------------------------|--|
| Last Year                        | Last Year figures  |
| Actuals                          | Total actual income or expenditure in the previous financial year                            |
| YTD Actuals                      | Actual income or expenditure last year at this point in the year                             |
| Current Year                     | Current Year figures   |
| Budget                           | Original budget  |
| Previous Forecast                | Forecast income or expenditure as submitted last period                                      |
| YTD Budget                       | Original budget to the current period (only used if original budget has been profiled)       |
| YTD Actuals                      | Actual expenditure to date, or to the end of the period if that month has ended              |
| Commitments                      | Outstanding orders   |
| Goods Receipts                   | Outstanding goods receipts   |
| Current Unspent                  | Previous forecast minus the YTD actuals, goods receipts & commitments                        |
| % Spend against Last<br>Forecast | YTD total of actuals, commitments and goods receipts as a % of the previous forecast         |
| Current Forecast                 | Forecast income or expenditure for the current period (this is where amendments can be made) |
| Revised Unspent                  | The current forecast minus the YTD actuals, goods receipts & commitments                     |
| Variance                         | Variances  |
| Forecast                         | The movement in the forecast from last period to this period                                 |
|                                  | (current forecast minus the previous forecast)   |
| Budget                           | The difference between the current forecast and the original budget                          |

#### Form - UP\_BUDFOR\_ACTUALS\_CC

# Form Functionality

# Navigation Trail/Breadcrumb

A navigation trail will appear on the top left hand corner of the form and represents the criteria the form has been run against. Some of the criteria can be changed/updated.

Full Cube + FIN + UP-REV-nom + /FY17/2 + AB + Figure 5 - Navigation Trail/Breadcrumb

#### Process to change the criteria:

- Click the element or cost centre. The university hierarchy will be returned. Select a new code from the hierarchy OR use the search
- Click in the search field and enter a cost centre.
- Click Search (the cost centre will be highlighted) and then click OK
- Click the Year/Period and select a new year and/or period from the calendar

# Font size and Profile

The form font size and profile (form) can be changed.

Click the down arrow next to the font or profile and select from the drop down menu.

## Expanding and Collapsing the Hierarchy

The form will default to level 9. Double click on a level 123456789 to change it. This will expand or summarise the data on the form.

## View Menu

#### **Display preferences**

The form columns can be displayed or hidden.

- Select View and then Display
- Remove the tick from any columns that are to be hidden
- Select OK

#### Show Horizontal Border Lines

Select View and tick 'show Horizontal Border Lines'

#### Show Summary Lines as Bold

Select View and tick 'Show Summary Lines as Bold'

# Drill Down

It is possible to drill down into actual transactions. It is not advised to drill down on commitments or goods receipts. It is recommended that SQL and e5 continue to be used:

- Right click over the value and select 'Finance System Data' from the drop down menu
- Details of the transaction(s) that make up the total value will be returned
- If there is a tick in the 'paperclip' column it means that a scanned image of a document is available. This can be accessed by double clicking on the tick
- Click OK

Although functionality exists, users are advised to retrieve transaction data through existing methods using e5 or SQL reports.

| External System Transactions    |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  | ×            |
|---------------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------------------|--|--------------------------|------------------------------------|--|--------------------------|------------------|--------------|
| File View                       |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  |              |
|                                 | Company:<br>Nominal:<br>Cost centre: | UP Univ<br>4743A Cab<br>36860 Fina | versity of Ports (FINTEST1)<br>pinets and Shelves<br>ance Office Capital | Period:<br>Bal:<br>Curr: | 2015/1 - 2015/10<br>AB<br>GBP(all) | Financial Value:<br>CP:<br>Difference: | 180.00<br>180.00<br>0.00 |                  |              |
| Nominal Cost centre Description |                                      |                                    | Financial Value Period 💰   | GL Srce Sys Name         | GL Srce Sys Ref                    |  |                          |                  |              |
| 4/43A 36860 2 Drawer lock       | able wooden c                        | abinet for LB                      | 180.00 8   | Accounts Payable         | supp=B01075,ref=5                  | 1343207,sysref=1449.                   | 262,lineNum=             | 1,seqNum=00001,t | ype=1,stype= |
|                                 |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  |              |
|                                 |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  |              |
|                                 |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  |              |
|                                 |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  |              |
| < (                             |                                      |                                    |  |                          |                                    |  |                          |                  | )>           |
|                                 |                                      |                                    |  | OK Cancel                | 0                                  |  |                          |                  |              |

Figure 6 - Finance Systems Data

# Update the Forecast

The current forecast can be updated in an open period. Cells that can be updated will be yellow. The forecast figure entered should be the total forecast.

Closed periods become fixed and no yellow cells will appear. No further amendments can be made once a period has been closed, access is restricted to view only.

#### Process to update the forecast:

- Process to update the forecast:
- Click in the cell in the Current Forecast column that needs to be updated.
- Enter the total forecast for the budget
- Click 'Save'
- Changes will rollover to the next period
- It is not necessary to click save after each individual change, multiple amendments on the same form can be made and then saved

## Comments

When a forecast is entered/updated, users should add a note in the comments column. Whilst this is not mandatory from a system perspective, users are strongly advised to do so. An attachment can also be added.

#### Process to add a comment

- Click in the comments column and add any comments.
- A comments icon will appear to the left of the comment cell. Double click on the icon to open the 'Cell Note' window. The window will hold any previous comments.

#### Process to add an attachment

- It is also possible to add an attachment from within the above window
- Click in the attachment field and click Browse
- Select the file
- Click OK to return to the Cell Note and then click OK to return to the Cell Form
- Click Save

#### **Cell Notes**

A note can be added to a cell that is not a formula

- Right click in the cell. Select 'Notes' form the menu
- Enter the text in the Notes box
- Click save. A comments icon will appear in the cell.

#### Cell Attachment

An attachment can be added to a cell that is not a formula:

- Double click on a cell that is not a formula on the form. The Cell Note box will be returned
- Right click and select 'Notes' from the menu
- Click browse and select file
- Click OK to return to Cell Note
- Click OK to return to form
- Click Save and the changes will roll over to the next period

# Salary Calculator

The Salary Calculator is used to monitor and update the salary forecasts for Establishment staff.

Within Salary Calculator, the actual salaries expenditure is imported from the costing file produced in iTrent. For any financial period where the payroll has been run, and the information exported into CP, actual expenditure will be shown. Future periods will be a forecast calculated using a preset formula. If the data held is not accurate for any post then this can be adjusted manually using the salary calculator override fields.

Permanent salaries nominal code rows will have a calculator icon in the current forecast column this is known as the calculator field.

# Open the Salary Calculator

Double click on the A calculator icon in the Nominal Pay code for Basic Gross Pay for the category you would like to open. The Budget Salary window will open and will default to the Employee Data Tab.

There are two tabs, the Employee Data Tab and the Actuals and Forecasts Tab. Click on a tab to select it.

# Employee Data tab

This tab holds information about each post and contains annualised salary costs, not forecast figures. The override fields in this tab allow users to update the salary forecast with local knowledge such as start and end dates.

| Name         Name <th< th=""><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th colspan="10">New Employees / Sworides an Existing Employees</th><th colspan="6"></th></th<>   |                |               |  |                                       |          | New Employees / Sworides an Existing Employees |         |         |               |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
|---|----------------|---------------|--|---------------------------------------|----------|--|---------|---------|---------------|------|-------|--------|--------------------|-----------------|------------|-------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| ZENEGANA         Discolor         Jan         <   | Number         | Sumber .      | forename   | humane                                | Torename | Sumana .                                       | PROVES. | weeks . | traisses tain | Sand | Scale | Scheme | Annual Alternation | Annual Overtime | Start Date | End Date    |  |  |  |  |  |
| Discolo         Marky         <   | 121011394A     | 0110000       | 389  | Seids                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2211111         01000         Mm         MM         MM         0         0         0           2210110         01000         Mm         MM         0.0         0.000         0.000         0         0         0         0           2210100         01000         Mm         MM         0.0         0.000         0.000            | 25601683       | 0110500       | detty  | 200                                   |          |  | 0.0     | 8.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2250200         210000         Mmy         MmA         0.0         0         0           2250200         210000         Mmy         MmA         0.0         0.00         0         0           2250200         210000         Mmy         MmA         0.0         0.00         0         0         0           2250200         210000         Mmy         MmA         0.0         0.000           | 12401.103      | 0110000       | den  | Smith                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 | 6          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| ZENCEOR         DILLIONO         Barling         Barling         Dilliono         Dilliono <thdilliono< th=""> <thdilliono< th=""> <thd< td=""><td>E2802.7W8</td><td>01100000</td><td>dwtty</td><td>dwate</td><td></td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.000</td><td>0.000</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></thd<></thdilliono<></thdilliono<>  | E2802.7W8      | 01100000      | dwtty  | dwate                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2201000         101000         May         Numb         0.0         0.000         0   | titecood .     | 0110000       | 349  | dowed h                               |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 5.000         |      |       |        | 0                  | - 0             | 2          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| Zzelszy:         tilliono         min         <   | 12401804       | 01100000      | detty  | 544                                   |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 6.000         |      |       |        | 0                  |                 | 6          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 224009         11000         mm   | 12801902       | 0110000       | 346  | Denith                                |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2200000         bitty         <   | 1001082        | 0110000       | den .  | 3840                                  |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        | 0                  |                 | 6          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| CZRUCCIÓN         PLINDOD         PARIMA         0.4         0.400         1.000         0 <th< td=""><td>124603000</td><td>0110000</td><td>Belly</td><td>(Smith</td><td></td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td>0.000</td><td>0.000</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td></td><td>6</td><td></td></th<>  | 124603000      | 0110000       | Belly  | (Smith                                |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        | 0                  |                 | 6          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| ZZANCOW         Binly         <   | 2802010        | 0110000       | (bee   | Smith                                 |          |  | 6.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        | .0                 |                 | 6          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 224004         01000         Imry         Juvin         0         0         0           224004         01000         Imry         Juvin         0         0         0         0           224004         01000         Imry         Juvin         0         0         0         0         0           224004         01000         Imry         Juvin         0<  | 72602033       | 01100000      | Betty  | (Denish                               |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        | 6                  |                 | E.         |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| ZZENCIA         Discose         Discose <t< td=""><td>2402044</td><td>0110000</td><td>Betty</td><td>Smith</td><td></td><td></td><td>9.0</td><td>0.500</td><td>9.600</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0</td><td>0</td><td></td><td></td></t<>  | 2402044        | 0110000       | Betty  | Smith                                 |          |  | 9.0     | 0.500   | 9.600         |      |       |        | 0                  | 0               |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| Calculate         Failor         Fail   | 72602045       | 01110000      | are .  | Smith                                 |          |  | 4.4     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| C200000         Dest         Dest         0         <   | 2+00074        | 0110008       | Betty  | Smith                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 6.500   | 8.800         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 224024         110000         Ferry         <   | 2400062        | 61110005      | dies .   | Smith                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 8.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2240004         01000         mm         mm/m         0.0         0.000         0.0   | 2502140        | 0110000       | Setu   | Smith                                 |          |  | 4.0     | 6.600   | 6.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2200274         101000         Mmy         Semin         0.0         0.0         0         0           2200274         101000         Mmy         Semin         0.0         0.00         0.00         0         0           2200274         101000         Mmy         Semin         0.0         0.00         0.00            | 2402148        | 0110000       | lin .  | Smith                                 |          |  | 4.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2200207         013000         Imm         Num         0.0         0.000         0.   | 72602367       | 0110000       | Setti .  | Smith                                 |          |  | 0.0     | 6.000   | 8.500         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2200000         bittoolo  | PARADONS 1     | A111-000-00   | in.  | And N                                 |          |  | 4.4     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    | 1               |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 220000         bit mode         some         some         some         some           2200000         imm         some         some         some         some         some           2200000         imm         some         some         some         some         some         some           2200000         imm         some  | Planting 1     | Are to be and | diam'r.  | Toronto .                             |          |  | 6.0     | -       | 6 000         |      |       |        |                    | 1               |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 220000         Barry         Barry <t< td=""><td>Cashing .</td><td></td><td>in the second se</td><td>-teath</td><td></td><td></td><td>4.4</td><td>10.000</td><td>0.000</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<> | Cashing .      |               | in the second se | -teath                                |          |  | 4.4     | 10.000  | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 220004         01000         0er         wein         0   | - naninana     | ALC: 100000   | Server 1   | Tanda                                 |          |  | 0.0     |         | A.444         |      |       |        |                    | 1 2             |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| C200010         Bitty         <   | PRODUCT OF     | 211 1.000 mg  | Test.  | Test I                                |          |  | 4.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    | 2               |            | _           |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2280000         2200000         2000         20000         2000         0.000         <   |                | 01110000      | Sec.   | diameter .                            |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    | 7               |            | _           |  |  |  |  |  |
| C200001         Status         Herin         0.0         0.000         1.000         0 </td <td>- Autority I</td> <td>0110000</td> <td>100</td> <td>Tan M</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1.000</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td>  | - Autority I   | 0110000       | 100  | Tan M                                 |          |  |         |         | 1.000         |      |       |        |                    | 2               |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| 2212717 1 221000 2a man 2000 2a man 2000 2a 20  | read and       | 111100000     | Testin .   | Sec. 1                                |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        | 1                  |                 |            | _           |  |  |  |  |  |
| Cartery St         Control         Contro         Control <thcontrol< th="">         &lt;</thcontrol<>  |                |               |  | 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 |          |  |         |         |               |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| ZENERIA ELINOS IN ACADE         Dem         0.0         0.00  | A PROPERTY AND | 1110000       | Ball   | Too th                                |          |  | 4.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            | -           |  |  |  |  |  |
| T200201         2200200         2200200         2000         1000           T200201         2200200         1000         1000         1000           Prove Date         400         1000         1000         1000  | CALCULATION OF | 21 LOOM       |  | - Annalda                             |          |  |         | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        | 1                  |                 |            | _           |  |  |  |  |  |
| ZENNER IZZNENN ZENNENNE ZENNENNE IZZNENNE I DA NAM NAM NAM NAM NAM NAM NAM NAM NAM NA   | Concepts of    | TRANSPORT     | TR. ACARCO   | TRUMPANTS.                            |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 0.000         |      | -     |        |                    |                 |            | -           |  |  |  |  |  |
| second as a second as more as the second as a second a  | CONTRACTOR OF  | TRACAS.       | TT-ACARCE  | A REAL PROPERTY.                      |          |  | 0.0     | 0.000   | 8.000         |      |       |        |                    |                 |            | -           |  |  |  |  |  |
| pRoject Dates 1 Actuals and Foresast  | Conversion Co  | ECON, AR.     | and the second second  | DELINGAGE T                           |          |  |         |         | 0.9990        |      |       |        |                    |                 | -          |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| phone Data   Addusts and Foresast   |                |               |  |                                       |          |  |         |         |               |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
|   | physe Deta     | Actuals at    | nd forecast  |                                       |          |  |         |         |               |      |       |        |                    |                 |            |             |  |  |  |  |  |
| Atl Res   |                |               |  |                                       |          |  |         |         |               |      |       |        |                    |                 | Attinue    | C Datatia I |  |  |  |  |  |

Figure 7 - Employee Data Tab

# New Employees / Overrides on Existing Employees

These fields will be white. Complete these fields to override data imported from iTrent. This will update the forecast figures in CP but will not update iTrent. iTrent is updated by HR. Any changes/updates made by the user in one month will be carried forward to future months and should be reviewed monthly and deleted once they are live in iTrent eg a member of staff has a leave date that is not yet in iTrent. Enter the leave date as an override. Next period check to see if the leave date is in iTrent. If it is remove the date from the override.

# Enter a leave date

- Find the post number of the leaver and select the end date field that relates to the post, in the overrides for existing employees area of the tab. The field will be white
- Enter the last date of employment on the 'End Date' field
- Click OK to close the window when all of the changes have been made. The changes will be returned to the forecast cell for the nominal code updated in the form
- Click save to save the new forecast in the form. Changes will rollover to the next period.

# Forecast Tab

This tab holds the data that has been downloaded from iTrent and the forecast data.

|             | t Engleyee Forecast Deernde Deernde |          |         |        |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |       |          |           |           |           |
|-------------|-------------------------------------|----------|---------|--------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|----------|-------|----------|-----------|-----------|-----------|
| number tor  | umber                               | Forename | Surname | Sumame | P1 Tutal | P2 Total | P3 Tetal | P4 Total | PS Total | P6 Tutal | P7 Total | PETIN | PS Total | P10 Total | P11 Total | P12 Total |
| 000179 011  | 10000                               | berty .  | Smith . |        | 1,814    | 1,045    | 1,045    | 1,065    | 1,865    | 1,045    | 1,045    | 1,865 | 3,911    | 1,911     | 1,911     | 1,91      |
| 000183 011  | 10000                               | Betty .  | Smith . |        | 1,750    | 1,800    | 1,800    | 1,800    | 1,800    | 1,800    | 1,800    | 1,800 | 1,844    | 1,844     | 3,844     | 1.84      |
| 800060 012  | 10000                               | 3m       | Smith   |        | 3,845    | 3,944    | 3,944    | 3,944    | 2,944    | 3,944    | 3,944    | 3,944 | 2,944    | 3,944     | 3,944     | 3,94      |
| 400080 011  | 10000                               | Betty    | Smith   |        | 5,745    | 5,881    | 5,881    | 5,691    | 5,881    | 5,881    | 5,881    | 5,001 | 5,881    | 8,681     | 5,881     | 5,8       |
| 800081 013  | 10000                               | 349      | Smith   |        | 2,329    | 2,394    | 2,794    | 2,394    | 2,394    | 2,394    | 2,394    | 2,994 | 2,454    | 2,454     | 2,454     | 2,4       |
| 600178 012  | 10000                               | Delty    | Smith   |        | 2,552    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,406    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606 | 2,605    | 2,606     | 2,606     | 2,60      |
| 800199 013  | 19000                               | jen .    | Smith   |        | 2,126    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171 | 2,171    | 2,171     | 2,171     | 2,1       |
| 800277 013  | 10000                               | Selly    | Smith   |        | 1,745    | 5,811    | 5,881    | 1,001    | 5,881    | 5,811    | 5,885    | 5,001 | 1,001    | 5,001     | 5,881     | 5.0       |
| 600318 013  | 20000                               | Set.     | Smith   |        | 3,673    | 3,372    | 3,772    | 3,372    | 2,772    | 3,772    | 3,772    | 3,772 | 3,862    | 3,862     | 3,842     | 3,0       |
| 805296 011  | 10000                               | 3m       | Smith   |        | 1,354    | 1,304    | 1,384    | 1,394    | 1,204    | 1,384    | 1,384    | 1,384 | 1,304    | 1,304     | 1,304     | 1,3       |
| 600426 011  | 10000                               | Belly.   | Smith   | -      | 8,750    | 5,685    | 5,881    | 5,001    | 5,001    | 3,861    | 5.861    | 5,801 | 5,881    | 1,881     | 5,865     | M         |
| 600481 011  | 10000                               | 5m       | Smith   |        | 2,552    | 2,605    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606 | 2,606    | 2,606     | 2,606     | 2.8       |
| 800485 011  | 10000                               | delty    | Smith   |        | 2,713    | 2,787    | 2,767    | 2,767    | 2,767    | 2,787    | 2,787    | 2,787 | 2,854    | 2,854     | 2,854     | 2,0       |
| 400503 010  | 10000                               | 240      | Smith.  |        | 2,852    | 2,605    | 2,606    | 2,604    | 2,406    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606 | 2,696    | 2,606     | 2,608     | 2,6       |
| 800566 013  | 10000                               | detty.   | Smith   | -      | 2,260    | 2,302    | 2,312    | 2,322    | 2,322    | 2,322    | 2,322    | 2,322 | 2,378    | 2,578     | 2,379     | 2,1       |
| 400588 011  | 10000                               | 34       | Smith   |        | 2,126    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,175    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,571 | 2,171    | 2,171     | 2,575     | 2,1       |
| 600645 012  | 10000                               | Setty    | Smith   |        | 1,038    | 1,041    | 1,061    | 1,041    | 1,043    | 1,041    | 1,093    | 1,061 | 1,061    | 1,061     | 1,045     | M         |
| 600648 012  | 10000                               | Set      | Smith   |        | 3,552    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606    | 2,606 | 2,606    | 2,606     | 2,606     | 2,6       |
| 600707 011  | 10000                               | 34       | Smith   |        | 1,117    | 1,998    | 1,998    | 5,998    | 1,998    | 1,998    | 1,998    | 1,998 | 2,045    | 2,045     | 2,045     | 2,0       |
| 400707A 010 | 10000                               | Detty    | Emith . |        | 1,808    | 1,940    | 1,940    | 1,940    | 1,940    | 1,840    | 1,940    | 1,940 | 3,886    | 1,906     | 1,906     | - 14      |
| #00729 012  | 10000                               | detty    | Smith   |        | 3,357    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,422    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 2,423    | 3,423 | 3,423    | 3,423     | 3,423     | 3.4       |
| #00#23 011  | 10000                               | 3m       | Smith   |        | 3,355    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,422    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,413    | 3,413 | 3,422    | 3,423     | 3,423     |           |
| 800848 017  | 10000                               | Betty .  | Smith   |        | 3,251    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,433    | 3,423 | 3,423    | 3,423     | 3,423     | 3.4       |
| 800868 012  | 10000                               | See      | Smith   |        | 5,765    | 2,352    | Ð        |          |          | 0        |          | 0     |          | - 0       | 0         |           |
| 800894 015  | 10000                               | Setty    | Smith   |        | 5,269    | 5,410    | 5,410    | 3,410    | 5,410    | 5,410    | 5,410    | 5,410 | 5,539    | 8,538     | 5,529     | 5.5       |
| 600538 012  | 10000                               | Setty    | Smith.  |        | 3,343    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,423    | 3,425    | 3,401 | 7,423    | 3,423     | 3,423     | 1,4       |
| 800943 011  | 10000                               | Sm       | Smith   | _      | 2,126    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,171    | 2,573    | 2,171    | 2,171 | 2,171    | 2,171     | 2,171     | 2,1       |
| 400943 011  | 10000                               | Setty    | Smith   |        | 4,530    | 4,657    | 4,657    | 4,657    | 4,457    | 4,857    | 4,637    | 4,457 | 4,768    | 4,768     | 4,768     | 4,7       |
| 600975 017  | 10000                               | See .    | Smith   |        | 4,104    | 445      | 0        |          |          | 0        |          | 0     |          |           |           |           |
| 600975A 011 | 10000                               | Belly.   | Smith   |        | 1,504    | 3,243    | 3,243    | 3,243    | 3,243    | 3,245    | 3,243    | 3,243 | 3,321    | 3,321     | 3,301     | 2,3       |
|             | 10000                               | Betty .  | Smith   |        | 3,260    | 3,328    | 3,310    | 3,308    | 3,326    | 3,318    | 3,516    | 5,328 | 3,328    | 3,328     | 3,328     | 3,3       |
| 901043 011  |                                     |          |         |        |          |          |          |          |          |          |          |       |          |           |           |           |

Figure 8 - Forecast Tab

Post numbers beginning with ZZ6 are those that existed in iTrent at 1<sup>st</sup> April 2016. Post numbers beginning with ZZ0 are generally new posts that have been set up since then. If a post has an additional letter at the end of the number eg A, B there is more than 1 person in the post eg for maternity cover, a leaver handover period. This can also indicate split costing applied to a post.

The columns shown as "Costing/Forecast" P1 Total – P12 Total are calculated fields. They will either show actual expenditure for periods where payroll has run and exported into CP, based on the costing data produced in iTrent, or forecast expenditure calculated for future periods where payroll has not yet run.

Actuals produced in the salary calculator fields may not match the actuals contained in the Finance forms if journals have been posted in the general ledger against Establishment pay nominal codes or if a more recent payroll has been processed.

The area at the bottom of the window shows the Total Forecast for the Pay Category, broken down by pay category. These totals will match the forecast shown on the form.

# Other Functionality

## Add a new account element

Users may need to add a forecast for a nominal not yet showing in the form. A nominal code can be added to a form. The nominal code added will roll over to the next period if a forecast is entered.

- Click add new account element, from the form
- Click + to expand the hierarchy and select a nominal code.
- Click OK and The nominal code will appear in the form. The nominal code will only rollover to the next period if a forecast is entered

# Download the form as an Excel file

A form can be exported to an Excel file. Follow the process to view a form.

The form will download to excel at the level (0-9) that was displayed on screen at time of download. Once in Excel, the hierarchy above that level will be maintained, but any more detailed levels will not be available.

The subtotal symbols 123 next to the row numbers in Excel will be available at the level it was saved at. Use the plus and menus symbols to collapse the detail rows for individual subtotals.

- Click The Excel button and save form as an Excel File
- The Export Reporter box will open
- Click OK to save the data
- Click the Communications button (on the CP home page top RHS) to locate the download
- Click the attachments link alongside the download, it will export to Excel

# Reporting

# **Reports** Tab

The reports tab will contain the reports available for users. There are a number of reports, the majority of which are for specific users.

#### Process to run a report

- Select a Cost Centre or Element from the Hierarchy display. Clicking + and will expand or collapse the hierarchies
- Click on the reports Tab
- Double click on the report to select it and then OK to run the report
- Click the Communications button at the top of RHS Home page to see the report and select the report from the left hand pane. The report link will appear in the right hand pane
- Click the attachments link and then OK
- The Mapped Report will open

When the form is opened in excel the 'enable content' button should be selected and this should hide any rows with zero values. If this does not give the required result there is a macro button included on the form that can be selected to hide any rows with a zero value.

## **Report Output**

This will vary depending on the report that has been run.

| Column Heading   | Description   |
|------------------|---|
| Budget           | Original Budget   |
| Forecast         | Forecast for the current and previous months  |
| Variance         | The difference between the current forecast and budget and the current forecast and previous forecast |
| Actuals          | Actual income or expenditure to date  |
| Goods Receipts   | Current Goods Receipts against orders   |
| Commitments      | Outstanding Commitments against orders  |
| Actuals + Orders | Actual expenditure + Commitments + Goods Receipts   |
| As % forecast    | Total Actual Expenditure as a percentage of the current forecast                                      |

This is the output for the 'Monthly Management Accounts' report.

This report is designed to be used as an exception report, to spot where further investigation is required. There is an additional tab "Variances" which is used by Finance staff when formally submitting the final management accounts for the month.

There are numerous reports available within CP, many of which are for specific users or budget holders. For more guidance on which reports to use, please contact the Management Accounts Team within the Finance Department.

More detailed reporting of transactions over several nominals should still be done in e5 and using

SQL reports.

# **Reporting Deadlines**

# **Financial Year Deadlines**

Meetings with managers who have budget responsibility should take place during the lead up to the month end, before the close of the period. This will ensure information gathering and communications can take place in full as necessary.

Users will be advised by members of the Finance team at the start of the Financial Year of the Monthly Management Accounts deadlines.